- Monthly Charges of this tariff. (30 TAC 291.76 d.(3) (i))
- (3) The Corporation, as a part of its billing process, collects voluntary contributions on behalf of the Edom Volunteer Fire Department. The Corporation shall retain from the proceeds the lesser amount of five percent or the total administrative costs for billing, collecting, and disbursing the voluntary contributions.
- 7. Assessments If at the end of the fiscal year, or in the event of emergency repairs, the Board of Directors determines the total amount derived from the collection of water or wastewater charges to be insufficient for the payment of all costs incident to the operation of the Corporation's system during the year in which such charges are collected, the Board shall make and levy an assessment against each Member of the Corporation as the Board may determine or as may be required by Rural Development, so that the sum of such assessments and the amount collected from water and other charges is sufficient to fully pay all costs of the operation, maintenance, replacement and repayment on indebtedness for the year's operations. (Article XVIII of Bylaws, Section 1.)
- 8. Late Payment Fee. Once per billing period, a penalty of \$10.00 or 10%, whichever is larger, shall be applied to delinquent bills. This late payment penalty shall not be applied to any balance to which the penalty was applied in a previous billing, but shall be applied to any unpaid balance during the current billing period.

NOTE: For Political Subdivisions and state agencies the above late payment fee does not apply. *Owner Notification Fee.* The Corporation may, at the expense of the Member, notify said Member of a renter/lessee delinquent account status prior to disconnection of service. The Owner Notification Fee shall be \$2.00 per notification. (See Miscellaneous Transaction Forms.)

- 9. *Mortgagee/Guarantor Notification Fee.* The Corporation shall assess a fee of \$2.00 for each notification to a Membership lien-holder under agreement prior to Membership cancellation. (See Miscellaneous Transaction Forms.)
- 11. *Returned Check Fee.* In the event a check, draft, or any other similar instrument is given by a person, firm, corporation, or partnership to the Corporation for payment of services provided for in this Tariff, and the instrument is returned by the bank or other similar institution as insufficient or non-negotiable for any reason, the account for which the instrument was issued shall be assessed a return check charge of \$25.00. (see Miscellaneous Transaction Forms)
- 12. **Reconnect Fee.** The Corporation shall charge a fee of \$25.00 for reconnecting service after the Corporation has previously disconnected the service for any reason provided for in this Tariff except for activation of service under Section E.3.b. Re-Service.
- 13. **Seasonal Reconnect Fee** Service Availability Charge multiplied by the number of months during which service is suspended, not to exceed 9 months during any 12 consecutive months.
- 14. Service Trip Fee. The Corporation shall charge a trip fee of \$25.00 for any service call or trip to the Member's tap as a result of a request by the Member or resident for response to damage of the Corporation's or another Member's facilities, for customer service inspections due to suspicion of meter tampering, bypass or diversion of service, or for the purpose of disconnecting or collecting payment for services. For service trips that extend beyond one hour, such as when an extended line location is required, the Corporation shall charge \$15.00 per employee per hour for each additional hour required.

- 15. Equipment Damage Fee. If the Corporation's facilities or equipment have been damaged by tampering, by-passing, installing unauthorized taps, reconnecting service without authority, or other service diversion, a fee shall be charged equal to the actual costs for all labor, material, and equipment necessary for repair, replacement, and other Corporation actions. This fee shall be charged and paid before service is re-established. If the Corporation's equipment has not been damaged, a fee equal to the actual costs for all labor, material, equipment, and other actions necessary to correct service diversions, unauthorized taps, or reconnection of service without authority shall be charged. All components of this fee will be itemized, and a statement shall be provided to the Member. If the Corporation's facilities or equipment have been damaged due to negligence or unauthorized use of the Corporation incurs losses or damages, the Member shall be liable for all labor and material charges incurred as a result of said acts or negligence.
- 16. Customer History Report Fee. A fee of \$2.00 shall be charged to provide a copy of the Members record of past water purchases in response to a Member's request for such a record.
- 17. Meter Test Fee. The Corporation shall test a Member's meter upon written request of the Member. Under the terms of Section E of this Tariff, a charge of \$15.00 shall be imposed on the affected account.
- 18. *Transfer Fee.* An Applicant for service who is a Transferee shall complete all required application forms, etc., and pay a Transfer Fee of \$2.00
- 19. *Non-Disclosure Fee.* A fee of \$2.00 shall be assessed any customer requesting in writing that personal information under the terms of this tariff not be disclosed to the public.
- 20. *Information Copy Fee.* A fee for the coping of any public information will be charged to the person requesting that information in compliance with the cost rules of the Texas Buildings and Procurement Commission set forth at 1 TAC Section 111.70.
- 21. Customer Service Inspection Fee. A fee of \$25.00 will be assessed each Applicant before permanent continuous service is provided to new construction.
- 22. **Regulatory Assessment.** A fee of 0.5% of the amount billed for water/sewer service will be assessed each customer; this assessment is required under Texas law and TCEQ regulations. **NOTE**: The regulatory assessment is not to be collected from state agencies, wholesale customers, or buyers of non-potable (not drinkable) water. (Ref. TCEQ RG-199 revised Oct. 2002. TCEQ Section 291.76 (c)
- 24. *Additional Assessments*. In the event any federal, state or local government imposes on the Corporation a "per meter" fee or an assessment based on a percent of water/sewer charges, this fee or assessment will be billed and collected as a "pass through" charge to the customer.
- 25. Groundwater District Production Fee. A fee of _____ per thousand gallons of water used by each customer; this fee is collected to pay a portion of the annual fee charged the Corporation by _____ Groundwater Conservation District based on the amount of water pumped from the Corporation's wells located within the boundaries of the District. (this fee will be imposed if it becomes applicable)

26. *Other Fees.* All services outside the normal scope of utility operations that the Corporation may be compelled to provide at the request of a customer or Member shall be charged to the recipient based on the cost of providing such service.

SECTION H. <u>DROUGHT CONTINGENCY (emergency rationing plan)</u> <u>AND</u> <u>EMERGENCY WATER DEMAND MANAGEMENT PLAN</u>

Plan currently held at Edom Water Supply Office

Reviewed for updates 4/16/2014

Drought Contingency Plan

For

Edom Water Supply Corporation

Exhibit A

Reviewed for updates 4/16/2014

NO CHANGES

Signed: James H. Dutchur

DROUGHT CONTINGENCY PLAN

FOR

EDOM WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION

EXHIBIT A

Triggering criteria for stage 1 revised per Board of Directors 7/11/06.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

APPENDIX C Drought Contingency Plan for Retail Public Water Supplies

 ${\tt APPENDIX\ D} \qquad {\tt Ordinance\ and\ Resolution\ of\ a\ Drought\ Contingency\ Plan}$

DROUGHT CONTINGENCY PLAN FOR THE EDOM WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION August 19, 2000

Section 1: Declaration of Policy, Purpose, and Intent

In order to conserve the available water supply and protect the integrity of water supply facilities, with particular regard for domestic water use, sanitation, and fire protection, and to protect and preserve public health, welfare, and safety and minimize the adverse impacts of water supply shortage or other water supply emergency conditions, the Edom Water Supply Corporation hereby adopts the following regulations and restrictions of the delivery and consumption of water.

Water uses regulated or prohibited under this Drought Contingency Plan (the Plan) are considered to be non-essential and continuation of such uses during times of water shortage or other emergency water supply condition are deemed to constitute a waste of water which subjects the offender(s) to penalties as defined in Section XI of this Plan.

Section II: Public Involvement

Opportunity for the public to provide input into the preparation of the Plan was provided by the Edom Water Supply Corporation by means of distributing the draft plan for public review and comment prior to adoption and holding public meetings.

Section III: Public Education

The Edom Water Supply Corporation will periodically provide the public with information about the Plan, including information about the conditions under which each stage of the Plan is to be initiated or terminated and the drought response measures to be implemented in each stage. This information will be provided by means of postal mail outs.

Section IV: Coordination with Regional Water Planning Groups

The service area of the Edom Water Supply Corporation is located within the Region D and Edom Water Supply Corporation has provided a copy of the Plan to the Northeast Texas MWD.

Section V: Authorization

The manager of Edom Water Supply Corporation, or his/her designee is hereby authorized and directed to implement the applicable provisions of this Plan upon determination that such implementation is necessary to protect public health, safety, and welfare. The manager, or his/her designee, shall have the authority to initiate or terminate drought or other water supply emergency response measures as described in this Plan.

Section VI: Application

The provisions of the Plan shall apply to all persons, customers, and property utilizing water provided by the Edom Water Supply Corporation. The terms "person" and "customer" as used in the Plan include individuals, corporations, partnerships, associations, and all other legal entities.

Section VII: Definitions

For the purposes of this Plan, the following definitions shall apply:

<u>Aesthetic water use</u>: Water use for ornamental or decorative purposes such as fountains, reflecting pools, and water gardens.

<u>Commercial</u> and institutional water use: water use which is integral to the operations of commercial and non-profit establishments and governmental entities such as retail establishments, hotels and motels, restaurants, and office buildings.

<u>Conservation</u>: Those practices, techniques, and technologies that reduce the consumption of water, reduce the loss or waste of water, improve the efficiency in the use of water or increase the recycling and reuse of water so that a supply is conserved and made available for future or alternative uses.

<u>Customer:</u> any person, company, or organization using water supplied by Edom Water Supply Corporation.

<u>Domestic water use</u>: water used for personal needs or for household or sanitary purposes such as drinking, bathing, heating, cooking, sanitation, or for cleaning a residence, business, industry, or institution.

Even number address: street addresses, box numbers or rural postal route numbers ending in 0, 2, 4, 6, or 8 and locations without addresses.

<u>Industrial water use</u>: the use of water in processes designed to convert materials of lower value into forms having greater usability and value.

Landscape irrigation use: water used for the irrigation and maintenance of landscaped areas, whether publicly or privately owned, including residential and commercial lawns, gardens golf courses, parks, and right-of-way and medians.

Non-essential water use: water uses that are neither essential nor required for the protection of public, health, safety, and welfare, including;

- (a) irrigation of landscape areas, including parks, athletic fields, and golf courses, except otherwise provided under this Plan;
- (b) use of water to wash any motor vehicle, motorbike, boat, trailer, airplane or other vehicle;
- (c) use of water to wash down any sidewalks, walkways, driveways, parking lots, tennis courts, or other hard-surfaced areas;
- (d) use of water to wash down buildings or structures for purposes other than immediate fire protection;
- (e) flushing gutters or permitting water to run or accumulate in any gutter or street;
- (f) use of water to fill, refill or add to any indoor or outdoor swimming pools or Jacuzzi-type pools;
- (g) use of water in a fountain or pond for aesthetic or scenic purposes except where necessary to support aquatic life;
- (h) failure to repair a controllable leak(s) within a reasonable period after having been given notice directing the repair of such leak(s); and
- (i) use of water from hydrants for construction purposes other than fire fighting.

Odd numbered address: street addresses, box numbers, or rural postal route numbers ending in 1, 3, 5, 7, or 9.

Section VIII: Triggering Criteria for Initiation and Termination of Drought Response Stages

The manager of Edom Water Supply Corporation, or his/her designee, shall monitor water supply and/or demand conditions on a daily basis and shall determine when conditions warrant initiation or termination of each stage of the Plan. Public notification of the initiation or termination of drought response stages shall be by means of publication in a newspaper of general circulation, and/or direct mail to each customer.

The triggering criteria described below are based on the recorded drought of 1999.

(a) Stage 1 - Mild Water Shortage Conditions

Requirements for initiation - Customers shall be required to voluntarily conserve water and adhere to the prescribed restrictions on certain water uses, defined in Section VII - Definitions, when the total daily water demand equals or exceeds a 250,000 gallons per day average for five consecutive days based on the current and normal operating capacity of Edom Water Supply Corporation's facilities.

Requirements for termination - Stage 1 of the Plan may be rescinded when all of the conditions listed as triggering events have ceases to exist for a period of twelve (12) consecutive days.

(b) Stage 2 - Moderate Water Shortage Conditions

Requirements for initiation - Customers shall be required to comply with the requirements and restrictions on certain non-essential water uses provided in Section VII of this Plan. When total daily water demand equals or exceeds 300,000 gallons per day for three (3) consecutive days based on the current and normal operating capacity of Edom Water Supply Corporation's facilities.

Requirements for termination - Stage 2 of the Plan may be rescinded when all of the conditions listed as triggering events have ceased to exist for a period of six (6) consecutive days. Upon termination of Stage 2, Stage 1 becomes operative.

(c) Stage 3 - Severe Water Shortage Conditions

Requirements for initiation - Customers shall be required to comply with the requirements and restrictions on certain non-essential water uses for Stage 3 of this Plan. When total daily water demand equals or exceeds 340,000 gallons per day for two (2) consecutive days, based on the current and normal operating capacity of Edom Water Supply Corporation's facilities.

Requirements for termination - Stage 3 of the Plan may be rescinded when all of the conditions listed as triggering events have ceased to exist for a period of three (3) consecutive days. Upon termination of Stage 3, Stage 2 becomes operative.

(d) Stage 4 - Critical Water Shortage Conditions

Requirements for initiation - Customers shall be required to comply with the requirements and restrictions on certain non-essential water uses for Stage 4 of this Plan. When total daily water demand equals or exceeds 360,000 gallons on a single day, based on the current and normal operating capacity of Edom Water Supply Corporation's facilities.

Requirements for termination - Stage 4 of the Plan may be rescinded when all of the conditions listed as triggering events have ceased to exist for a period of three (3) consecutive days. Upon termination of Stage 4, Stage 3 becomes operative.

(e) Stage 5 - Emergency Water Shortage Conditions

Requirements for initiation - Customers shall be required to comply with the requirements and restrictions for Stage 5 of this Plan when the manager of Edom Water Supply Corporation or his/her designee, determines that a water supply emergency exists based on:

- Major water line breaks, or pump or system failures occur, which
 cause unprecedented loss of capability to provide water service; or
 the single day demand equals or exceeds 380,000 gallons based on the
 current and normal operating capacity of Edom Water Supply
 Corporation's facilities.
- 2. Natural or man-made contamination of the water supply source(s).

Requirements for termination - Stage 5 of the Plan may be rescinded when all of the conditions listed as triggering events have ceased to exist for a period of two (2) consecutive days.

(f) Water Rationing

Requirements for initiation - Customers shall be required to comply with the water allocation plan prescribed in Section X of this Plan and comply with the requirements and restrictions for Stage 5 of this Plan when there is a system capacity limitations and/or supply source contamination exist.

Requirements for termination - Water rationing may be rescinded when all of the conditions listed as triggering events have ceased to exist for a period of two (2) consecutive days.

Section IX: Drought Response Stages

The manager of Edom Water Supply Corporation or his/her designee, shall monitor water supply and/or demand conditions on a daily basis, and in accordance with the triggering criteria set forth in Section VIII of the Plan, shall determine that a mild, moderate, severe, critical, or emergency condition exists and shall implement the following actions upon publication of notice in a newspaper of general circulation:

Stage 1 - Mild Water Shortage Conditions

<u>Goal</u>: Achieve a voluntary 5 percent reduction in the total gallons of the daily water demand.

Supply Management Measures:

Edom Water Supply Corporation will reduce flushing water mains.

Voluntary Water Use Restrictions:

- (a) Water customers are requested to voluntarily limit the irrigation of landscaped areas to Sundays and Thursdays for customers with a street address ending in an even number (0, 2, 4, 6, or 8). Saturdays and Wednesdays for water customers with a street address ending in an odd number (1, 3, 5, 7 or 9), and to irrigate landscapes only between the hours of midnight and 10:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m. to midnight on designated watering days.
- (b) All operations of the Edom Water Supply Corporation shall adhere to water use restrictions prescribed for Stage 1 of the Plan.
- (c) Water customers are requested to practice water conservation and to minimize or discontinue water use for non-essential purposes.

Stage 2 - Moderate Water Shortage Conditions

Goal: Achieve a 13 percent reduction in the total gallons of the daily water demand.

Supply Management Measures:

Edom Water Supply Corporation will discontinue flushing of water mains and accelerate leak detection.

<u>Water Use Restrictions</u>: Under threat of penalty for violation, the following water use restrictions shall apply to all persons:

- (a) Irrigation of landscaped areas with hose-end sprinklers or automatic irrigation systems shall be limited to Sundays and Thursdays for customers with a street address ending in an even number (0, 2, 4, 6 or 8). Saturdays and Wednesdays for water customers with a street address ending in an odd number (1, 3, 5, 7 or 9), and irrigation of landscaped areas is further limited to the hours of 12:00 midnight until 10:00 a.m. and between 8:00 p.m. and 12:00 midnight on designated watering days. However, irrigation of landscaped areas is permitted at anytime if it is by means of a hand-held hose, a faucet filled bucket, or watering can of five (5) gallons or less, or drip irrigation system.
- (b) Use of water to wash any motor vehicle, motorbike, boat, trailer, airplane or other vehicle is prohibited except on designated watering days between the hours of 12:00 midnight and 10:00 a.m. and between 8:00 p.m. and 12:00 midnight. Such washing, when allowed, shall be done with a hand-held bucket or a hand-held hose equipped with a positive shutoff nozzle for quick rinses. Vehicle washing may be done at any time on the immediate premises of a commercial car wash or commercial service station. Further, such washing may be exempted from these regulations if the health, safety, and welfare of the public is contingent upon frequent vehicle cleansing, such as garbage trucks and vehicles used to transport food and perishables.
- (c) Use of water to fill, refill, or add to any indoor or outdoor swimming pools, wading pools, or Jacuzzi-type pools is prohibited except on designated watering days between the hours of 112:00 midnight and 10:00 a.m. and between 8 p.m. and 12:00 midnight.
- (d) Operation of any ornamental fountain or pond for aesthetic or scenic purposes is prohibited except where necessary to support aquatic life or where such fountains or ponds are equipped with a re-circulation system.
- (e) Use of water from hydrants shall be limited to fire fighting, related activities, or other activities necessary to maintain public health, safety, and welfare, except that use of water from designated fire hydrants for construction purposes may be allowed under special permit from the Edom Water Supply Corporation.
- (f) Use of water for the irrigation of golf course greens, tees, and fairways is prohibited except on designated watering days between the hours, 12:00 midnight and 10:00 a.m. and between 8 p.m. and 12:00 midnight. However, if the golf course utilizes a water source other than that provided by the Edom Water Supply Corporation, the facility shall not be subject to these regulations.
- (g) All restaurants are prohibited from serving water to its patrons except when requested.
- (h) The following uses of water are defined as non-essential and are prohibited:
 - wash down of any sidewalks, walkways, driveways, parking lots, tennis courts, or other hard-surfaced areas;
 - 2. use of water to wash down buildings or structures for purposes other than immediate fire protection;
 - 3. use of water for dust control;
 - 4. flushing gutters or permitting water to run or accumulate in any gutter or street; and,

5. failure to repair a controllable leak(s) within a reasonable period after having been given notice directing the repair of such leak(s)

Stage 3 - Severe Water Shortage Conditions

<u>Goal</u>: Achieve a 12 percent reduction in the total gallons of the daily water demand.

Supply Management Measures:

Edom Water Supply Corporation will stop all outside watering and step up monitoring and correcting poor water conservation practices throughout the system.

<u>Water Use Restrictions</u>: All requirements of Stage 2 shall remain in effect during Stage 3 except:

- (a) Irrigation of landscaped areas shall be limited to designated watering days between the hours of 12:00 midnight and 10:00 a.m. and between 8 p.m. and 12:00 midnight and shall be by means of hand-held buckets, drip irrigation, or permanently installed automatic sprinkler system only. The use of hose-end sprinklers is prohibited at all times.
- (b) The watering of golf course tees is prohibited unless; the golf course utilizes a water source other than that provided by the Edom Water Supply Corporation.
- (c) The use of water for construction purposes from designated fire hydrants under special permit is to be discontinued.

Stage 4 - Critical Water Shortage Conditions

<u>Goal</u>: Achieve a 17 percent reduction in the total gallons of daily water demand.

Supply Management Measures:

Enforcement of water restrictions.

Water Use Restrictions: All requirements of Stage 2 and 3 shall remain in effect during Stage 4 except:

- (a) Irrigation of landscaped areas shall be limited to designated watering days between the hours of 6:00 a.m. and 8:00 a.m. and between 10:00 p.m. and 12:00 midnight and shall be by means of hand-held hoses, hand-held buckets, or drip irrigation only. The use of hose-end sprinklers or permanently installed automatic sprinkler systems are prohibited at all times.
- (b) Use of water to wash any motor vehicle, motorbike, boat, trailer, airplane or other vehicle is prohibited at all times
- (c) The filling, refilling, or adding, of water to swimming pools, wading pools, and Jacuzzi-type pools is prohibited.

- (d) Operation of any ornamental fountain or pond for aesthetic or scenic purposes is prohibited except where necessary to support aquatic life or where such fountains or ponds are equipped with a re-circulation system.
- (e) No applications for new, additional, expanded, or increasedin-size water service connections, meters, service lines, pipeline extensions, mains, or water service facilities of any kind shall be allowed or approved.

Stage 5 - Emergency Water Shortage Conditions

<u>Goal</u>: Achieve a 22 percent reduction in the total gallons of the daily water demand.

Supply Management Measures: Absolute enforcement of violations.

<u>Water Use Restrictions</u>: All requirements of Stage 2, 3, and 4 shall remain in effect during Stage 5 except:

- (a) Irrigation of landscaped areas is absolutely prohibited.
- (b) Use of water to wash any motor vehicle, motorbike, boat, trailer, airplane or other vehicle is absolutely prohibited.

Section X: Water Rationing

In the event that water shortage conditions threaten public health, safety, and welfare, the manager of Edom Water Supply Corporation, is hereby authorized to ration water according to the following water allocation plan:

Single-Family Residential Customers

The allocation to residential water customers residing in a single-family dwelling shall be as follows:

Persons per Household	Gallons per Month
1 or 2	6,000
3 or 4	7,000
5 or 6	8,000
7 or 8	9,000
9 or 10	10,000
11 or more	12,000

"Household" means the residential premises served by the customer's meter. "Persons per household" includes only those persons currently physically residing at the premises and expected to reside there for the entire billing period. It shall be assumed that a particular customer's household is comprised of two (2) persons unless the customer notifies the Edom Water Supply Corporation of a greater number of persons per household on a form prescribed by the water department manager. The water department manager shall give his/her best effort to see that such forms are mailed, otherwise provided, or made available to every residential customer. If, however, a customer does not receive such a form, it shall be the customer's responsibility to go to the Edom Water Supply Corporation office to complete and sign the form claiming

more than two (2) persons per household. New customers may claim more persons per household at the time of applying for water service on the form prescribed by the water department manager. When the number of persons per household increases so as to place the customer in a different allocation category, the customer may notify the Edom Water Supply Corporation on such form and the change will be implemented in the next practicable billing period. number of persons in a household is reduced, the customer shall notify the Edom Water Supply Corporation in writing within two (2) days. In prescribing the method for claiming more than two (2) persons per household, the water department manager shall adopt methods to insure the accuracy of the claim. Any person who knowingly, recklessly, or with criminal negligence falsely reports the number of persons in a household or fails to timely notify the Edom Water Supply Corporation of a reduction in the number of person in a household shall be fined not less than \$100.00. Residential water customers shall pay the following surcharges:

```
$10.00 for the first 1,000 gallons over allocation.
$12.00 for the second 1,000 gallons over allocation.
```

\$14.00 for the third 1,000 gallons over allocation.

\$16.00 for each additional 1,000 gallons over allocation.

Surcharges shall be cumulative.

Master-Metered Multi-Family Residential Customers

The allocation to a customer billed from a master meter that jointly measures water to multiple permanent residential dwelling units (e.g., apartments, mobile homes) shall be allocated 6,000 gallons per month for each dwelling unit. It shall be assumed that such a customer's meter serves two dwelling units, unless the customer notifies the Edom Water Supply Corporation of a greater number on a form prescribed by the water department manager. The water department manager shall give his/her best effort to see that such forms are mailed, otherwise provided, or made available to every such customer. If, however a customer does not receive such a form, it shall be the customer's responsibility to go to the Edom Water Supply Corporations offices to complete and sign the form claiming more than two (2) dwellings. A dwelling unit may be claimed under this provision whether it is occupied or not. New customers may claim more dwelling units at the time of applying for water service on the form prescribed by the water department manager. number of dwelling units served by a master meter is reduced, the customer shall notify the Edom Water Supply Corporation in writing within two (2) days. In prescribing the method for claiming more than two (2) dwelling units, the water department manager shall adopt methods to insure the accuracy of the claim. Any person who knowingly, recklessly, or with criminal negligence falsely reports the number of dwelling units served by a master meter fails to timely notify the Edom Water Supply Corporation of a reduction in the number of persons in a household shall be fined not less than \$100.00. Customers billed from a master meter under this provision shall pay the following monthly surcharges:

\$12.00 for 1,000 gallons over allocation up through 1,000 gallons for each dwelling unit.

\$16.00, thereafter, for each additional 1,000 gallons over allocation up through a second 1,000 gallons for each dwelling unit.

\$20.00, thereafter, for each additional 1,000 gallons over allocation up through a third 1,000 gallons for each dwelling unit.

\$24.00, thereafter, for each additional 1,000 gallons over allocation.

Surcharges shall be cumulative.

Commercial Customers

The water department manager, or his/her designee shall establish a monthly water usage allocation for each nonresidential commercial customer other than an industrial customer who uses water for processing purposes. The non-residential customer's allocation shall be approximately 80 percent of the customer's usage for corresponding month's billing period for the previous 12 months. If the customer's billing history is shorter than 12 months, the monthly average for the period for which there is a record shall be used for any monthly period for which no history exists. Any commercial customer whose 80 percent of monthly usage is less than 40,000 gallons, shall be allocated 32,000 gallons. The water department manager shall give his/her best effort to see that notice of each non-residential customer's allocation is mailed to such customer. If, however, a customer does not receive such notice, it shall be the customer's responsibility to contact the Edom Water Supply Corporation to determine the allocation. Upon request of the customer, or at the initiative of the water department manager, the allocation may be reduced or increased if, (1) the designated period does not accurately reflect the customer's normal water usage, (2) nonresidential customer agrees to transfer part of its allocation to another nonresidential customer, or (3) other objective evidence demonstrates that the designated allocation is inaccurate under present conditions. A customer may appeal an allocation established hereunder to the water department manager or board of directors of the Edom Water Supply Corporation. Nonresidential commercial customers shall pay the following surcharges:

Customers whose allocation is 12,000 gallons through 100,000 gallons per month:

\$14.00 per 1,000 gallons for the first 1,000 gallons over allocation.

\$22.00 per 1,000 gallons for the second 1,000 gallons over allocation.

\$30.00 per 1,000 gallons for the third 1,000 gallons over allocation.

\$38.00 per 1,000 gallons for each additional 1,000 gallons over allocation.

Customers whose allocation is 100,000 gallons per month or more:

- 2 times the block rate for each 1,000 gallons in excess of the allocation up through 5 percent above allocation.
- 4 times the block rate for each 1,000 gallons from 5 percent through 10 percent above allocation.
- 6 times the block rate for each 1,000 gallons from 10 percent through 15 percent above allocation.
- 8 times the block rate for each 1,000 gallons more than 15 percent above allocation.

The surcharges shall be cumulative. As used herein, "block rate" means the charge to the customer per 1,000 gallons at the regular water rate schedule at the level of the customer's allocation.

Section XI: Enforcement

- (a) No person shall knowingly or intentionally allow the use of water from the Edom Water Supply Corporation for residential, commercial, industrial, agricultural, governmental, or any other purpose in a manner contrary to any provision of this Plan, or in an amount in excess of that permitted by the drought response stage in effect at the time pursuant to action taken by water department manager, or his/her designee, in accordance with provisions of this Plan.
- (b) Any person who violates this Plan is guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction shall be punished by a fine of not less than one hundred dollars (\$100.00) and not more than five Each day that one or more of the hundred dollars (\$500.00). provisions in this Plan is violated shall constitute a separate offense. If a person is convicted of three or more distinct violations of this Plan, the water department manager shall, upon due notice to the customer, be authorized to discontinue water service to the premises where such violations occur. Services discontinued under such circumstances shall be restored only upon payment of a re-connection charge, hereby established at \$50.00, and any other costs incurred by the Edom Water Supply Corporation in discontinuing service. In addition, suitable assurance must be given to the water department manager that the same action shall not be repeated while the Plan is in effect. Compliance with this plan may also be sought through injunctive relief in the district court.
- (c) Any person, including a person classified as a water customer of the Edom Water Supply Corporation, in apparent control of the property where a violation occurs or originates shall be presumed to be the violator, and proof that the violation occurred on the person's property shall constitute a rebuttable presumption that the person in apparent control of the property committed the violation, but any such person shall have the right to show that he/she did not commit the violation. Parents shall be presumed to be responsible for violations of their minor children and proof that a violation, committed by a child,

- occurred on property within the parents' control shall constitute a rebuttable presumption that the parent committed the violation, but any such parent may be excused if he/she proves that he/she had previously directed the child not to use the water as it was used in violation of this Plan and that the parent could not have reasonably known of the violation.
- (d) Any employee of the Edom Water Supply Corporation, police officer, or other department employee designated by the water department manager, may issue a citation to a person he/she reasonably believes to be in violation of this Ordinance. The citation shall be prepared in duplicate and shall contain the name and address of the alleged violator, if known, the offense charged, and shall direct him/her to appear in the appropriate court on the date shown on the citation for which the date shall not be less than 3 days nor more than 5 days from the date the citation was issued. The alleged violator shall be served a copy of the citation. Service of the citation shall be complete upon delivery of the citation to the alleged violator, to an agent or employee of a violator, or to a person over 14 years of age who is a member of the violator's immediate family or is a resident of the violator's residence. The alleged violator shall appear in the appropriate court to enter a plea of quilty or not guilty for the violation of this Plan. If the alleged violator fails to appear in the appropriate court, a warrant for his/her arrest may be issued. A summons to appear may be issued in lieu of an arrest warrant. These cases shall be expedited and given preferential setting in the appropriate court before all other cases.

Section XII: Variances

The water department manager, or his/her designee, may in writing, grant temporary variance for existing water uses otherwise prohibited under this Plan if it is determined that failure to grant such variance would cause an emergency condition adversely affecting the health, sanitation, or fire protection for the public or the person requesting such variance and if one or more of the following conditions are met:

- (a) Compliance with this Plan cannot be technically accomplished during the duration of the water supply shortage or other condition for which the Plan is in effect.
- (b) Alternative methods can be implemented which will achieve the same level of reduction in water use.

Persons requesting an exemption from the provisions of this Ordinance shall file a petition for variance with the Edom Water Supply Corporation within 5 days after the Plan or a particular drought response stage has been invoked. All petitions for variances shall be reviewed by the water department manager, or his/her designee, and shall include the following:

- (a) Name and address of the petitioner(s)
- (b) Purpose of water use.
- (c) Specific provision(s) of the Plan from which the petitioner is requesting relief.

- (d) Detailed statement as to how the specific provision of the Plan adversely affects the petitioner or what damage or harm will occur to the petitioner or others if petitioner complies with this Ordinance.
- (e) Description of the relief requested.
- (f) Period of time for which the variance is sought.
- (g) Alternative water use restrictions or other measures the petitioner is taking or proposes to take to meet the intent of this Plan and the compliance date.
- (h) Other pertinent information.

Variances granted by the Edom Water Supply Corporation shall be subject to the following conditions, unless waived or modified by the water department manager or his/her designee:

- (a) Variances granted shall include a timetable for compliance.
- (b) Variances granted shall expire when the Plan is no longer in effect, unless the petitioner has failed to meet specified requirements.

No variance shall be retroactive or otherwise justify any violation of this Plan occurring prior to the issuance of the variance.

Section XIII: Sever ability

It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Directors of the Edom Water Supply Corporation that the sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this Ordinance are sever able and, if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph, or section of this Plan shall be declared unconstitutional by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, and sections of this Plan, since the same would not have been enacted by the Board of Directors of the Edom Water Supply Corporation without the incorporation into this Plan of any such unconstitutional phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph, or section.

RESOLUTION NO. 20003

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE EDOM WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION ADOPTING A DROUGHT CONTINGENCY PLAN.

WHEREAS, the Board recognizes that the amount of water available to the Edom Water Supply Corporation and its water utility customers is limited and subject to depletion during periods of extended drought;

WHEREAS, the Board recognizes that natural limitations due to drought conditions and other acts of God cannot guarantee an uninterrupted water supply for all purposes;

WHEREAS, Section 11.1272 of the Texas Water Code and applicable rules of the Texas Natural Resource Conservation Commission require all public water supply systems in Texas to prepare a drought contingency plan; and

WHEREAS, as authorized under law, and in the best interests of the customers of the Edom Water Supply Corporation, the Board deems it expedient and necessary to establish certain rules and policies for the orderly and efficient management of limited water supplies during drought and other water supply emergencies;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE EDOM WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION:

SECTION 1. That the Drought Contingency Plan attached hereto as Exhibit A and made part hereof for all purposes be, and the same is hereby, adopted as the official policy of the Edom Water Supply Corporation.

SECTION 2. That the water department manager is hereby directed to implement, administer, and enforce the Drought Contingency Plan.

SECTION 3. That this resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage.

DULY PASSED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE Elon WSC., ON THIS 2 day of Septem ber, 2000.

President, Board of Directors

ATTESTED TO:

Secretary, Board of Directors

DROUGHT CONTINGENCY PLAN

FOR

EDOM WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION

EXHIBIT A

Name 1

TABLE OF CONTENTS

APPENDIX C	Model Drought Contingency Plan for Retail Public Water Suppliers
APPENDIX D	Example Ordinance and Resolution of a Drought Contingency Plan

DROUGHT CONTINGENCY PLAN

FOR THE

EDOM WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION August 19, 2000

Section I: Declaration of Policy, Purpose, and Intent

In order to conserve the available water supply and protect the integrity of water supply facilities, with particular regard for domestic water use, sanitation, and fire protection, and to protect and preserve public health, welfare, and safety and minimize the adverse impacts of water supply shortage or other water supply emergency conditions, the Edom Water Supply Corporation hereby adopts the following regulations and restrictions on the delivery and consumption of water.

Water uses regulated or prohibited under this Drought Contingency Plan (the Plan) are considered to be non-essential and continuation of such uses during times of water shortage or other emergency water supply condition are deemed to constitute a waste of water which subjects the offender(s) to penalties as defined in Section XI of this Plan.

Section II: Public Involvement

Opportunity for the public to provide input into the preparation of the Plan was provided by the Edom Water Supply Corporation by means of distributing the draft plan for public review and comment prior to adoption and holding public meetings.

Section III: Public Education

The Edom Water Supply Corporation will periodically provide the public with information about the Plan, including information about the conditions under which each stage of the Plan is to be initiated or terminated and the drought response measures to be implemented in each stage. This information will be provided by means of postal mail outs.

Section IV: Coordination with Regional Water Planning Groups

The service area of the Edom Water Supply Corporation is located within the Region D and Edom Water Supply Corporation has provided a copy of this Plan to the Northeast Texas MWD.

Section V: Authorization

The manager of Edom Water Supply Corporation, or his/her designee is hereby authorized and directed to implement the applicable provisions of this Plan upon determination that such implementation is necessary to protect public health, safety, and welfare. The manager, or his/her designee, shall have the authority to initiate or terminate drought or other water supply emergency response measures as described in this Plan.

Section VI: Application

The provisions of this Plan shall apply to all persons, customers, and property utilizing water provided by the Edom Water Supply Corporation. The terms "person" and "customer" as used in the Plan include individuals, corporations, partnerships, associations, and all other legal entities.

Section VII: Definitions

For the purposes of this Plan, the following definitions shall apply:

Aesthetic water use: water use for ornamental or decorative purposes such as fountains, reflecting pools, and water gardens.

<u>Commercial and institutional water use</u>: water use which is integral to the operations of commercial and non-profit establishments and governmental entities such as retail establishments, hotels and motels, restaurants, and office buildings.

<u>Conservation</u>: those practices, techniques, and technologies that reduce the consumption of water, reduce the loss or waste of water, improve the efficiency in the use of water or increase the recycling and reuse of water so that a supply is conserved and made available for future or alternative uses.

<u>Customer</u>: any person, company, or organization using water supplied by Edom Water Supply Corporation.

<u>Domestic water use</u>: water use for personal needs or for household or sanitary purposes such as drinking, bathing, heating, cooking, sanitation, or for cleaning a residence, business, industry, or institution.

<u>Even number address</u>: street addresses, box numbers, or rural postal route numbers ending in 0, 2, 4, 6, or 8 and locations without addresses.

<u>Industrial water use</u>: the use of water in processes designed to convert materials of lower value into forms having greater usability and value.

<u>Landscape irrigation use</u>: water used for the irrigation and maintenance of landscaped areas, whether publicly or privately owned, including residential and commercial lawns, gardens, golf courses, parks, and rights-of-way and medians.

Non-essential water use: water uses that are not essential nor required for the protection of public, health, safety, and welfare, including:

- (a) irrigation of landscape areas, including parks, athletic fields, and golf courses, except otherwise provided under this Plan;
- (b) use of water to wash any motor vehicle, motorbike, boat, trailer, airplane or other vehicle;
- (c) use of water to wash down any sidewalks, walkways, driveways, parking lots, tennis courts, or other hard-surfaced areas;
- (d) use of water to wash down buildings or structures for purposes other than immediate fire protection;
- (e) flushing gutters or permitting water to run or accumulate in any gutter or street;
- (f) use of water to fill, refill, or add to any indoor or outdoor swimming pools or jacuzzi-type pools;
- (g) use of water in a fountain or pond for aesthetic or scenic purposes except where necessary to support aquatic life;
- (h) failure to repair a controllable leak(s) within a reasonable period after having been given notice directing the repair of such leak(s); and
- (i) use of water from hydrants for construction purposes or any other purposes other than fire fighting.

Odd numbered address: street addresses, box numbers, or rural postal route numbers ending in 1, 3, 5, 7, or 9.

Section VIII: Triggering Criteria for Initiation and Termination of Drought Response Stages

The manager of Edom Water Supply Corporation, or his/her designee, shall monitor water supply and/or demand conditions on a daily basis and shall determine when conditions warrant initiation or termination of each stage of the Plan. Public notification of the initiation or termination of drought response stages shall be by means of publication in a newspaper of general circulation, and/or direct mail to each customer.

The triggering criteria described below are based on the recorded drought of 1999.

(a) Stage 1 - Mild Water Shortage Conditions

Requirements for initiation - Customers shall be requested to voluntarily conserve water and adhere to the prescribed restrictions on certain water uses, defined in Section VII – Definitions, when the total daily water demand equals or exceeds 260,000 gallons per day for five (5) consecutive days based on the current and normal operating capacity of Edom Water Supply Corporation's facilities.

* CHANGED PER BOARD OF DIRECTORS 7/12/05

Requirements for termination - Stage 1 of the Plan may be rescinded when all of the conditions listed as triggering events have ceased to exist for a period of twelve (12) consecutive days.

(b) Stage 2 - Moderate Water Shortage Conditions

Requirements for initiation - Customers shall be required to comply with the requirements and restrictions on certain non-essential water uses provided in Section VII of this Plan. When total daily water demand equals or exceeds 300,000 gallons per day for three (3) consecutive days based on the current and normal operating capacity of Edom Water Supply Corporation's facilities.

Requirements for termination - Stage 2 of the Plan may be rescinded when all of the conditions listed as triggering events have ceased to exist for a period of six (6) consecutive days. Upon termination of Stage 2, Stage 1 becomes operative.

(c) Stage 3 - Severe Water Shortage Conditions

Requirements for initiation - Customers shall be required to comply with the requirements and restrictions on certain non-essential water uses for Stage 3 of this Plan. When total daily water demand equals or exceeds 340,000 gallons per day for two (2) consecutive days, based on the current and normal operating capacity of Edom Water Supply Corporation's facilities.

<u>Requirements for termination</u> - Stage 3 of the Plan may be rescinded when all of the conditions listed as triggering events have ceased to exist for a period of three (3) consecutive days. Upon termination of Stage 3, Stage 2 becomes operative.

(d) Stage 4 - Critical Water Shortage Conditions

Requirements for initiation - Customers shall be required to comply with the requirements and restrictions on certain non-essential water uses for Stage 4 of this Plan. When total daily water demand equals or exceeds 360,000 gallons on a single day, based on the current and normal operating capacity of Edom Water Supply Corporation's facilities.

<u>Requirements for termination</u> - Stage 4 of the Plan may be rescinded when all of the conditions listed as triggering events have ceased to exist for a period of three (3) consecutive days. Upon termination of Stage 4, Stage 3 becomes operative.

(e) Stage 5 - Emergency Water Shortage Conditions

Requirements for initiation - Customers shall be required to comply with the requirements and restrictions for Stage 5 of this Plan when the manager of Edom Water Supply Corporation or his/her designee, determines that a water supply emergency exists based on:

- 1. Major water line breaks, or pump or system failures occur, which cause unprecedented loss of capability to provide water service; or the single day demand equals or exceeds 380,000 gallons based on the current and normal operating capacity of Edom Water Supply Corporation's facilities.
- 2. Natural or man-made contamination of the water supply source(s).

<u>Requirements for termination</u> - Stage 5 of the Plan may be rescinded when all of the conditions listed as triggering events have ceased to exist for a period of two (2) consecutive days.

(f) Water Rationing

<u>Requirements for initiation</u> - Customers shall be required to comply with the water allocation plan prescribed in Section X of this Plan and comply with the requirements and restrictions for Stage 5 of this Plan when there is a system capacity limitations and/or supply source contamination exist.

<u>Requirements for termination</u> - Water rationing may be rescinded when all of the conditions listed as triggering events have ceased to exist for a period of two (2) consecutive days.

Section IX: Drought Response Stages

The manager of Edom Water Supply Corporation or his/her designee, shall monitor water supply and/or demand conditions on a daily basis, and in accordance with the triggering criteria set forth in Section VIII of the Plan, shall determine that a mild, moderate, severe, critical, or emergency condition exists and shall implement the following actions upon publication of notice in a newspaper of general circulation:

Stage 1 - Mild Water Shortage Conditions

Goal: Achieve a voluntary 5 percent reduction in the total gallons of the daily water demand.

Supply Management Measures:

(a). Edom Water Supply Corporation will reduce flushing water mains.

Voluntary Water Use Restrictions:

- (a) Water customers are requested to voluntarily limit the irrigation of landscaped areas to Sundays and Thursdays for customers with a street address ending in an even number (0, 2, 4, 6 or 8). Saturdays and Wednesdays for water customers with a street address ending in an odd number (1, 3, 5, 7 or 9), and to irrigate landscapes only between the hours of midnight and 10:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m to midnight on designated watering days.
- (b) All operations of the Edom Water Supply Corporation shall adhere to water use restrictions prescribed for Stage 1 of the Plan.
- (c) Water customers are requested to practice water conservation and to minimize or discontinue water use for non-essential purposes.

Stage 2 - Moderate Water Shortage Conditions

Goal: Achieve a 13 percent reduction in the total gallons of the daily water demand.

Supply Management Measures:

(a) Edom Water Supply Corporation will discontinue flushing of water mains and accelerate leak detection.

Water Use Restrictions. Under threat of penalty for violation, the following water use restrictions shall apply to all persons:

- (a) Irrigation of landscaped areas with hose-end sprinklers or automatic irrigation systems shall be limited to Sundays and Thursdays for customers with a street address ending in an even number (0, 2, 4, 6 or 8). Saturdays and Wednesdays for water customers with a street address ending in an odd number (1, 3, 5, 7 or 9), and irrigation of landscaped areas is further limited to the hours of 12:00 midnight until 10:00 a.m. and between 8:00 p.m. and 12:00 midnight on designated watering days. However, irrigation of landscaped areas is permitted at anytime if it is by means of a hand-held hose, a faucet filled bucket, or watering can of five (5) gallons or less, or drip irrigation system.
- (b) Use of water to wash any motor vehicle, motorbike, boat, trailer, airplane or other vehicle is prohibited except on designated watering days between the hours of 12:00 midnight and 10:00 a.m. and between 8:00 p.m. and 12:00 midnight. Such washing, when allowed, shall be done with a hand-held bucket or a hand-held hose equipped with a positive shutoff nozzle for quick rises. Vehicle washing may be done at any time on the immediate premises of a commercial car wash or commercial service

- station. Further, such washing may be exempted from these regulations if the health, safety, and welfare of the public is contingent upon frequent vehicle cleansing, such as garbage trucks and vehicles used to transport food and perishables.
- (c) Use of water to fill, refill, or add to any indoor or outdoor swimming pools, wading pools, or jacuzzi-type pools is prohibited except on designated watering days between the hours of 12:00 midnight and 10:00 a.m. and between 8 p.m. and 12:00 midnight.
- (d) Operation of any ornamental fountain or pond for aesthetic or scenic purposes is prohibited except where necessary to support aquatic life or where such fountains or ponds are equipped with a re-circulation system.
- (e) Use of water from hydrants shall be limited to fire fighting, related activities, or other activities necessary to maintain public health, safety, and welfare, except that use of water from designated fire hydrants for construction purposes may be allowed under special permit from the Edom Water Supply Corporation.
- (f) Use of water for the irrigation of golf course greens, tees, and fairways is prohibited except on designated watering days between the hours, 12:00 midnight and 10:00 a.m. and between 8 p.m. and 12:00 midnight. However, if the golf course utilizes a water source other than that provided by the Edom Water Supply Corporation, the facility shall not be subject to these regulations.
- (g) All restaurants are prohibited from serving water to its patrons except when requested.
- (h) The following uses of water are defined as non-essential and are prohibited:
 - 1. wash down of any sidewalks, walkways, driveways, parking lots, tennis courts, or other hard-surfaced areas;
 - 2. use of water to wash down buildings or structures for purposes other than immediate fire protection;
 - 3. use of water for dust control;
 - 4. flushing gutters or permitting water to run or accumulate in any gutter or street; and,
 - 5. failure to repair a controllable leak(s) within a reasonable period after having been given notice directing the repair of such leak(s).

Stage 3 - Severe Water Shortage Conditions

Goal: Achieve a 12 percent reduction in the total gallons of the daily water demand.

Supply Management Measures:

- (a) Edom Water Supply Corporation will stop all outside watering and step up monitoring and correcting poor water conservation practices throughout the system.
- 3. Water Use Restrictions. All requirements of Stage 2 shall remain in effect during Stage 3 except:
 - (a) Irrigation of landscaped areas shall be limited to designated watering days between the hours of 12:00 midnight and 10:00 a.m. and between 8 p.m. and 12:00 midnight and shall be by means of hand-held hoses, hand-held buckets, drip irrigation, or permanently installed automatic sprinkler system only. The use of hose-end sprinklers is prohibited at all times.
 - (b) The watering of golf course tees is prohibited unless, the golf course utilizes a water source other than that provided by the Edom Water Supply Corporation.
 - (c) The use of water for construction purposes from designated fire hydrants under special permit is to be discontinued.

Stage 4 - Critical Water Shortage Conditions

Goal: Achieve a 17 percent reduction in the total gallons of daily water demand.

Supply Management Measures:

(a) Enforcement of water restrictions.

Water Use Restrictions. All requirements of Stage 2 and 3 shall remain in effect during Stage 4 except:

- (a) Irrigation of landscaped areas shall be limited to designated watering days between the hours of 6:00 a.m. and 8:00 a.m. and between 10:00 p.m. and 12:00 midnight and shall be by means of hand-held hoses, hand-held buckets, or drip irrigation only. The use of hose-end sprinklers or permanently installed automatic sprinkler systems are prohibited at all times.
- (b) Use of water to wash any motor vehicle, motorbike, boat, trailer, airplane or other vehicle is prohibited at all times.

- (c) The filling, refilling, or adding of water to swimming pools, wading pools, and jacuzzi-type pools is prohibited.
- (d) Operation of any ornamental fountain or pond for aesthetic or scenic purposes is prohibited except where necessary to support aquatic life or where such fountains or ponds are equipped with a re-circulation system.
- (e) No applications for new, additional, expanded, or increased-in-size water service connections, meters, service lines, pipeline extensions, mains, or water service facilities of any kind shall be allowed or approved.

Stage 5 - Emergency Water Shortage Conditions

Goal: Achieve a 22 percent reduction in the total gallons of the daily water demand.

Supply Management Measures:

(a) Absolute enforcement of violations.

Water Use Restrictions. All requirements of Stage 2, 3, and 4 shall remain in effect during Stage 5 except:

- (a) Irrigation of landscaped areas is absolutely prohibited.
- (b) Use of water to wash any motor vehicle, motorbike, boat, trailer, airplane or other vehicle is absolutely prohibited.

Section X: Water Rationing

In the event that water shortage conditions threaten public health, safety, and welfare, the manager of Edom Water Supply Corporation, is hereby authorized to ration water according to the following water allocation plan:

Single-Family Residential Customers

The allocation to residential water customers residing in a single-family dwelling shall be as follows:

Persons per Household	Gallons per Month
1 or 2	6,000
3 or 4	7,000

5 or 6	8,000
7 or 8	9,000
9 or 10	10,000
11 or more	12,000

"Household" means the residential premises served by the customer's meter. "Persons per household" includes only those persons currently physically residing at the premises and expected to reside there for the entire billing period. It shall be assumed that a particular customer's household is comprised of two (2) persons unless the customer notifies the Edom Water Supply Corporation of a greater number of persons per household on a form prescribed by the water department manager. The water department manager shall give his/her best effort to see that such forms are mailed, otherwise provided, or made available to every residential customer. If, however, a customer does not receive such a form, it shall be the customer's responsibility to go to the Edom Water Supply Corporation office to complete and sign the form claiming more than two (2) persons per household. New customers may claim more persons per household at the time of applying for water service on the form prescribed by the water department manager. When the number of persons per household increases so as to place the customer in a different allocation category, the customer may notify the Edom Water Supply Corporation on such form and the change will be implemented in the next practicable billing period. If the number of persons in a household is reduced, the customer shall notify the Edom Water Supply Corporation in writing within two (2) days. In prescribing the method for claiming more than two (2) persons per household, the water department manager shall adopt methods to insure the accuracy of the claim. Any person who knowingly, recklessly, or with criminal negligence falsely reports the number of persons in a household or fails to timely notify the Edom Water Supply Corporation of a reduction in the number of person in a household shall be fined not less than \$100.00. Residential water customers shall pay the following surcharges:

\$ 10.00 for the first 1,000 gallons over allocation.

\$ 12.00 for the second 1,000 gallons over allocation.

\$ 14.00 for the third 1,000 gallons over allocation.

\$ 16.00 for each additional 1,000 gallons over allocation.

Surcharges shall be cumulative.

Master-Metered Multi-Family Residential Customers

The allocation to a customer billed from a master meter which jointly measures water to multiple permanent residential dwelling units (e.g., apartments, mobile homes) shall be allocated 6,000 gallons per month for each dwelling unit. It shall be assumed that such a customer's meter serves two dwelling units, unless the customer notifies the Edom Water Supply Corporation of a greater number on a form prescribed by the water department manager. The water department manager shall give his/her best effort to see that such forms are mailed, otherwise provided, or made available to every such customer. If, however, a

customer does not receive such a form, it shall be the customer's responsibility to go to the Edom Water Supply Corporation offices to complete and sign the form claiming more than two (2) dwellings. A dwelling unit may be claimed under this provision whether it is occupied or not. New customers may claim more dwelling units at the time of applying for water service on the form prescribed by the water department manager. If the number of dwelling units served by a master meter is reduced, the customer shall notify the Edom Water Supply Corporation in writing within two (2) days. In prescribing the method for claiming more than two (2) dwelling units, the water department manager shall adopt methods to insure the accuracy of the claim. Any person who knowingly, recklessly, or with criminal negligence falsely reports the number of dwelling units served by a master meter or fails to timely notify the Edom Water Supply Corporation of a reduction in the number of person in a household shall be fined not less than \$100.00. Customers billed from a master meter under this provision shall pay the following monthly surcharges:

\$12.00 for 1,000 gallons over allocation up through 1,000 gallons for each dwelling unit.

\$16.00, thereafter, for each additional 1,000 gallons over allocation up through a second 1,000 gallons for each dwelling unit. \$20.00, thereafter, for each additional 1,000 gallons over allocation up through a third 1,000 gallons for each dwelling unit. \$24.00, thereafter, or each additional 1,000 gallons over allocation.

Surcharges shall be cumulative.

Commercial Customers

A monthly water usage allocation shall be established by the water department manager, or his/her designee, for each nonresidential commercial customer other than an industrial customer who uses water for processing purposes. The non-residential customer's allocation shall be approximately 80 percent of the customer's usage for corresponding month's billing period for the previous 12 months. If the customer's billing history is shorter than 12 months, the monthly average for the period for which there is a record shall be used for any monthly period for which no history exists. Provided however a customer. 80 percent of whose monthly usage is less than 40,000 gallons, shall be allocated 32,000 gallons. The water department manager shall give his/her best effort to see that notice of each non-residential customer's allocation is mailed to such customer. If, however, a customer does not receive such notice, it shall be the customer's responsibility to contact the Edom Water Supply Corporation to determine the allocation. Upon request of the customer, or at the initiative of the water department manager, the allocation may be reduced or increased if, (1) the designated period does not accurately reflect the customer's normal water usage, (2) one nonresidential customer agrees to transfer part of its allocation to

another nonresidential customer, or (3) other objective evidence demonstrates that the designated allocation is inaccurate under present conditions. A customer may appeal an allocation established hereunder to the water department manager or board of directors of the Edom Water Supply Corporation. Nonresidential commercial customers shall pay the following surcharges:

Customers whose allocation is 12,000 gallons through 100,000 gallons per month:

- \$ 14.00 per thousand gallons for the first 1,000 gallons over allocation.
- \$ 22.00 per thousand gallons for the second 1,000 gallons over allocation.
- \$ 30.00 per thousand gallons for the third 1,000 gallons over allocation.
- \$ 38.00 per thousand gallons for each additional 1,000 gallons over allocation.

Customers whose allocation is 100,000 gallons per month or more:

- 2 times the block rate for each 1,000 gallons in excess of the allocation up through 5 percent above allocation.
- 4 times the block rate for each 1,000 gallons from 5 percent through 10 percent above allocation.
- 6 times the block rate for each 1,000 gallons from 10 percent through 15 percent above allocation.
- 8 times the block rate for each 1,000 gallons more than 15 percent above allocation.

The surcharges shall be cumulative. As used herein, "block rate" means the charge to the customer per 1,000 gallons at the regular water rate schedule at the level of the customer's allocation.

Section XI: Enforcement

- (a) No person shall knowingly or intentionally allow the use of water from the Edom Water Supply Corporation for residential, commercial, industrial, agricultural, governmental, or any other purpose in a manner contrary to any provision of this Plan, or in an amount in excess of that permitted by the drought response stage in effect at the time pursuant to action taken by water department manager, or his/her designee, in accordance with provisions of this Plan.
- (b) Any person who violates this Plan is guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction shall be punished by a fine of not less than one hundred dollars (\$100.00) and not more than five hundred dollars (\$500.00). Each day that one or more of the provisions in this Plan is violated shall constitute a separate offense. If a person is convicted of three or more distinct violations of this Plan, the water department manager shall, upon due notice to the customer, be authorized to discontinue water service to the premises where such violations occur. Services discontinued under such circumstances shall be restored only upon payment of a re-connection charge, hereby established at \$50.00, and any other costs incurred by the Edom Water Supply Corporation in discontinuing service. In addition, suitable assurance must be given to the water department manager that the same action shall not be repeated while the Plan is in effect. Compliance with this plan may also be sought through injunctive relief in the district court.
- (c) Any person, including a person classified as a water customer of the Edom Water Supply Corporation, in apparent control of the property where a violation occurs or originates shall be presumed to be the violator, and proof that the violation occurred on the person's property shall constitute a rebuttable presumption that the person in apparent control of the property committed the violation, but any such person shall have the right to show that he/she did not commit the violation. Parents shall be presumed to be responsible for violations of their minor children and proof that a violation, committed by a child, occurred on property within the parents' control shall constitute a rebuttable presumption that the parent committed the violation, but any such parent may be excused if he/she proves that he/she had previously directed the child not to use the water as it was used in violation of this Plan and that the parent could not have reasonably known of the violation.
- (d) Any employee of the Edom Water Supply Corporation, police officer, or other department employee designated by the water department manager, may issue a citation to a person he/she reasonably believes to be in violation of this Ordinance. The citation shall be prepared in duplicate and shall contain the name and addresss of the alleged violator, if known, the offense charged, and shall direct him/her to appear in the appropriate court on the date shown on the citation for which the date shall not be less than 3 days nor more than 5 days from the date the citation was issued. The alleged violator shall be served a copy of

the citation. Service of the citation shall be complete upon delivery of the citation to the alleged violator, to an agent or employee of a violator, or to a person over 14 years of age who is a member of the violator's immediate family or is a resident of the violator's residence. The alleged violator shall appear in the appropriate court to enter a plea of guilty or not guilty for the violation of this Plan. If the alleged violator fails to appear in the appropriate court, a warrant for his/her arrest may be issued. A summons to appear may be issued in lieu of an arrest warrant. These cases shall be expedited and given preferential setting in the appropriate court before all other cases.

Section XII: Variances

The water department manager, or his/her designee, may, in writing, grant temporary variance for existing water uses otherwise prohibited under this Plan if it is determined that failure to grant such variance would cause an emergency condition adversely affecting the health, sanitation, or fire protection for the public or the person requesting such variance and if one or more of the following conditions are met:

(a) Compliance with this Plan cannot be technically accomplished during the duration of the water supply shortage or other condition for which the Plan is in effect.

(b) Alternative methods can be implemented which will achieve the same level of reduction in water use.

Persons requesting an exemption from the provisions of this Ordinance shall file a petition for variance with the Edom Water Supply Corporation within 5 days after the Plan or a particular drought response stage has been invoked. All petitions for variances shall be reviewed by the water department manager, or his/her designee, and shall include the following:

- (a) Name and address of the petitioner(s).
- (b) Purpose of water use.
- (c) Specific provision(s) of the Plan from which the petitioner is requesting relief.
- (d) Detailed statement as to how the specific provision of the Plan adversely affects the petitioner or what damage or harm will occur to the petitioner or others if petitioner complies with this Ordinance.
- (e) Description of the relief requested.
- (f) Period of time for which the variance is sought.
- (g) Alternative water use restrictions or other measures the petitioner is taking or proposes to take to meet the intent of this Plan and the compliance date.
- (h) Other pertinent information.

Variances granted by the Edom Water Supply Corporation shall be subject to the following conditions, unless waived or modified by the water department manager or his/her designee:

- (a) Variances granted shall include a timetable for compliance.
- (b) Variances granted shall expire when the Plan is no longer in effect, unless the petitioner has failed to meet specified requirements.

No variance shall be retroactive or otherwise justify any violation of this Plan occurring prior to the issuance of the variance.

Section XIII: Severability

It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Directors of the Edom Water Supply Corporation that the sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this Ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph, or section of this Plan shall be declared unconstitutional by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, and sections of this Plan, since the same would not have been enacted by the Board of Directors of the Edom Water Supply Corporation without the incorporation into this Plan of any such unconstitutional phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph, or section.

SECTION I. SAMPLE APPLICATION PACKET

RUS-TX Bulletin 1780-9 (Revised 09/02)	CORPORATION USE ONLY Date Approved:				
Edom Water Supply Corporation	Service Classification: Cost: Work Order Number:				
SERVICE APPLICATION AND AGREEMENT	Eng. Update:				
Please Print: DATE	Account Number: Service Inspection Date:				
APPLICANT'S NAME	L				
CO-APPLICANT'S NAME					
CURRENT BILLING ADDRESS: FUTURE BI	ILLING ADDRESS:				
PHONE NUMBER - Home (
PREVIOUS OWNER'S NAME AND ADDRESS (if transferring Membership)					

NOTE: FORM MUST BE COMPLETED BY APPLICANT ONLY.

☐ Black, Not of

Hispanic Origin

ACREAGE _____

NUMBER IN FAMILY

The following information is requested by the Federal Government in order to monitor compliance with Federal laws prohibiting discrimination against applicants seeking to participate in this program. You are not required to furnish this information, but are encouraged to do so. This information will not be used in evaluating your application or to discriminate against you in any way. However, if you choose not to furnish it, we are required to note the race/national origin of individual applicants on the bais of visual observation or surname.

Hispanic

Asian or

Pacific Islander

SPECIAL SERVICE NEEDS OF APPLICANT _____

American Indian or

Alaskan Native

	_	_		-	_
EQUA	L OPP	ORTUN	VITY	PROGR	\overline{AM}

☐ White, Not of

Hispanic Origin

| Male

(Specify) | Female

Other

HOUSEHOLD SIZE

LIVESTOCK & NUMBER

AGREEMENT made this	day of	,, between
Edom Water Supply Corporation, a called the Corporation) and	orporation organized under	the laws of the State of Texas (hereinafter
	(hereina	after called the Applicant and/or Member),
Witnesseth:		

The Corporation shall sell and deliver water and/or wastewater service to the Applicant and the Applicant shall purchase, receive, and/or reserve service from the Corporation in accordance with the bylaws and tariff of the Corporation as amended from time to time by the Board of Directors of the Corporation. Upon compliance with said policies, including payment of a Membership Fee, the Applicant qualifies for Membership as a new applicant or continued Membership as a transferee and thereby may hereinafter be called a Member.

The Member shall pay the Corporation for service hereunder as determined by the Corporation's tariff and upon the terms and conditions set forth therein, a copy of which has been provided as an information packet, for which Member acknowledges receipt hereof by execution of this agreement. A copy of this agreement shall be executed before service may be provided to the Applicant.

The Board of Directors shall have the authority to discontinue service and cancel the Membership of any Member not complying with any policy or not paying any utility fees or charges as required by the Corporation's published rates, fees, and conditions of service. At any time service is discontinued, terminated or suspended, the Corporation shall not re-establish service unless it has a current, signed copy of this agreement.

If this agreement is completed for the purpose of assigning utility service as a part of a rural domestic water and/or wastewater system loan project contemplated with the Rural Development, an Applicant shall pay an Indication of Interest Fee in lieu of a Membership Fee for the purposes of determining:

- a. The number of taps to be considered in the design and
- b. The number of potential ratepayers considered in determining the financial feasibility of constructing
 - 1) a new water system or
 - 2) expanding the facilities of an existing water system.

The Applicant hereby agrees to obtain, utilize, and/or reserve service as soon as it is available. Applicant, upon qualification for service under the terms of the Corporation's policies, shall further qualify as a Member and the Indication of Interest Fee shall then be converted by the Corporation to a Membership Fee. Applicant further agrees to pay, upon becoming a Member, the monthly charges for such service as prescribed in the Corporation's tariff. Any breach of this agreement shall give cause for the Corporation to liquidate, as damages, the fees previously paid as an indication of interest. In addition to any Indication of Interest Fees forfeited, the Corporation may assess a lump sum of \$300.00 as liquidated damages to defray any losses incurred by the Corporation. If delivery of service to said location is deemed infeasible by the Corporation as a part of this project, the Applicant shall be denied Membership in the Corporation and the Indication of Interest Fee, less expenses, shall be refunded. The Applicant may re-apply for service at a later date under the terms and conditions of the Corporation's policies. For the purposes of this agreement, an Indication of Interest Fee shall be of an amount equal to the Corporation's Membership Fees.

All water shall be metered by meters to be furnished and installed by the Corporation. The meter and/or wastewater connection is for the sole use of the Member or customer and is to provide service to only one (1) dwelling or one (1) business. Extension of pipe(s) to transfer utility service from one property to another, to share, resell, or submeter water to any other persons, dwellings, businesses, or property, etc., is prohibited.

The Corporation shall have the right to locate a water service meter and the pipe necessary to connect the meter on the Member's property at a point to be chosen by the Corporation, and shall have access to its property and equipment located upon Member's premises at all reasonable and necessary times for any purpose connected with or in the furtherance of its business operations, and upon discontinuance of service the Corporation shall have the right to remove any of its equipment from the Member's property. The Member shall install, at their own expense, any necessary service lines from the Corporation's facilities and equipment to the point of use, including any customer service isolation valves, backflow prevention devices, clean-outs, and other equipment as may be specified by the Corporation. The Corporation shall also have access to the Member's property for the purpose of inspecting for possible cross-connections, potential contamination hazards, illegal lead materials, and any other violations or possible violations of state and federal statutes and regulations relating to the federal Safe Drinking Water Act or Chapter 341 of the Texas Health & Safety Code or and the corporation's tariff and service policies.

The Corporation is responsible for protecting the drinking water supply from contamination or pollution which could result from improper practices. This service agreement serves as notice to each customer of the restrictions which are in place to provide this protection. The Corporation shall enforce these restrictions to ensure the public health and welfare. The following undesirable practices are prohibited by state regulations:

- a. No direct connection between the public drinking water supply and a potential source of contamination is permitted. Potential sources of contamination shall be isolated from the public water system by an airgap or an appropriate backflow prevention assembly in accordance with state regulations.
- b. No cross-connection between the public drinking water supply and a private water system is permitted. These potential threats to the public drinking water supply shall be eliminated at the service connection by the proper installation of an airgap or a reduced pressure-zone backflow prevention assembly and a service agreement must exist for annual inspection and testing by a certified backflow prevention device tester.

- c. No connection which allows condensing, cooling, or industrial process water to be returned to the public drinking water supply is permitted.
- d. No pipe or pipe fitting which contains more than 8.0 % lead may be used for the installation or repair of plumbing on or after July 1, 1988, at any connection which provides water for human consumption.
- e. No solder or flux which contains more than 0.2 % lead may be used for the installation or repair plumbing on or after July 1, 1988, at any connection which provides water for human consumption.

Service agreement continued between EWSC and ________, customer

- A. The Water System will maintain a copy of this agreement as long as the customer and/or the premises is connected to the Water System.
- B. The customer shall allow his property to be inspected for possible cross-connections and other potential contamination hazards. The water system or its designated agent shall conduct these "Customer Service Inspections." A customer service inspection certificate shall be completed prior to providing continuous water service to new construction, on any existing service either when the water purveyor has a reason to believe that cross-connections or other potential contaminant hazards exist or illegal lead materials or after any material improvement, correction, or addition to the private water distribution facilities These inspections shall be conducted by the Corporation or its designated agent prior to initiating service and periodically thereafter. The inspections shall be conducted during the Corporation's normal business hours.

The Corporation shall notify the Member in writing of any cross-connections or other undesirable practices which have been identified during the initial or subsequent inspection. The Member shall immediately correct any undesirable practice on their premises. The Member shall, at their expense, properly install, test, and maintain any backflow prevention device required by the Corporation. Copies of all testing and maintenance records shall be provided to the Corporation as required. Failure to comply with the terms of this service agreement shall cause the Corporation to terminate service or properly install, test, and maintain an appropriate backflow prevention device at the service connection. Any expenses associated with the enforcement of this agreement shall be billed to the Member.

In the event the total water supply is insufficient to meet all of the Members, or in the event there is a shortage of water, the Corporation may initiate the Emergency Rationing Program as specified in the Corporation's Tariff. By execution of this agreement, the Applicant hereby shall comply with the terms of said program.

By execution hereof, the Applicant shall hold the Corporation harmless from any and all claims for damages caused by service interruptions due to waterline breaks by utility or like contractors, tampering by other Member/users of the Corporation, normal failures of the system, or other events beyond the Corporation's control.

The Applicant shall grant to the Corporation permanent recorded easement(s) dedicated to the Corporation for the purpose of providing reasonable rights of access and use to allow the Corporation to construct, maintain, replace, upgrade, parallel, inspect, test and operate any facilities necessary to serve that

Applicant as well as the Corporation's purposes in providing system wide service for existing or future members.

By execution hereof, the Applicant shall guarantee payment of all other rates, fees, and charges due on any account for which said Applicant owns a Membership. Said guarantee shall pledge any and all Membership Fees against any balance due the Corporation. Liquidation of said Membership Fees shall give rise to discontinuance of service under the terms and conditions of the Corporation's tariff.

By execution hereof, the Applicant agrees that non-compliance with the terms of this agreement by said Applicant shall constitute denial or discontinuance of service until such time as the violation is corrected to the satisfaction of the Corporation.

Any misrepresentation of the facts by the Applicant on any of the four pages of this agreement shall result in discontinuance of service pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Corporation's tariff.

Witnessed	Applicant Member	
Approved and Accepted		

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE Rural Utilities Service

RIGHT OF WAY EASEMENT (Location of Easement Required)

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that
(hereinafter called "Grantors"), in consideration of one dollar (\$1.00) and other good and valuable
consideration paid by, (hereinafter called "Grantee"), the receipt and
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, does hereby grant, bargain, sell, transfer, and convey to said
Grantee, its successors, and assigns, a perpetual easement with the right to erect, construct, install, and lay and
thereafter access and use, operate, inspect, repair, maintain, replace, upgrade, parallel and remove water
distribution lines and appurtenances and any other facilities necessary to serve Grantors' property as well as
the Grantee's current and future system wide customers, under, over and acrossacres of land,
more particularly described in instrument recorded in Vol, Page, Deed Records,
County, Texas, together with the right of ingress and egress over Grantor's adjacent lands
for the purpose for which the above mentioned rights are granted. The easement hereby granted shall not
exceed 15' in width, and Grantee is hereby authorized to designate the course of the easement herein conveyed
except that when the pipeline(s) is installed, the easement herein granted shall be limited to a strip of land 15'
in width, the center line thereof to be located across said land as follows:

Grantee shall have such other rights and benefits necessary and/or convenient for the full enjoyment and use of the rights herein granted, including without limitation, (1) the reasonable right of ingress and egress over and across lands owned by Grantor which are contiguous to the easement; (2) the reasonable right from time to time to remove any and all paving, undergrowth and other obstructions that may injure Grantee's facilities and appurtenances or interfere with the construction, maintenance, inspection, operation, protection, repair, alteration, testing, replacement, upgrading, paralleling, relocation (as above limited), substitution or removal thereof; and (3) the right to abandon-in-place any and all water supply lines, service lines and associated appurtenances, such that Grantee shall have no obligation or liability to Grantor or their successors or assigns to move or remove any such abandoned lines or appurtenances.

In the event the county or state hereafter widens or relocates any public road so as to require the relocation of this water line as installed, Grantor further grants to Grantee an additional easement over and across the land described above for the purpose of laterally relocating said water line as may be necessary to clear the road improvements, which easement hereby granted shall be limited to a strip of land 15' in width the center line thereof being the pipeline as relocated.

The consideration recited herein shall constitute payment in full for all damages sustained by Grantors by reason of the installation of the structures referred to herein and the Grantee will maintain such easement in a state of good repair and efficiency so that no unreasonable damages will result from its use to Grantors' premises. This agreement together with other provisions of this grant shall constitute a covenant running with the land for the benefit of the Grantee, its successors, and assigns. The Grantors covenant that they are the owners of the above described land and that said lands are free and clear of all encumbrances and liens except the following:

Grantor does hereby bind itself, its successors and assigns, to WARRANT AND FOREVER DEFEND, all and singular, the easement herein granted to Grantee, or Grantee's successors and assigns, against every person whomsoever claiming, or to claim, the same or any part thereof.

Form RUS-TX 442-8 (Rev. 9-02)

The easement conveyed herein was obtained or improved through Federal financial assistance. This easement is subject to the provisions of the Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the regulations issued pursuant thereto for so long as the easement continues to be used for the same or similar purpose for which financial assistance was extended or for so long as the Grantee owns it, whichever is longer.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the said Grantors, 20	have executed this instrument this day of
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT	
STATE OF TEXAS COUNTY OF	
BEFORE ME, the undersigned, a Notary Public is appearedis(are) subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknow the purposes and consideration therein expressed.	n and for said County and State, on this day personally known to me to be the person(s) whose name(s) wledged to me that he (she) (they) executed the same for
GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OF	FICE THIS THE day of, 20
(Seal)	County, Texas. (Notary Public in and for)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE Rural Utilities Service

RIGHT OF WAY EASEMENT (General Type Easement)

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that,
(hereinafter called "Grantors"), in consideration of one dollar (\$1.00) and other good and valuable
consideration paid by, (hereinafter called "Grantee"), the receipt and
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, does hereby grant, bargain, sell, transfer, and convey to said
Grantee, its successors, and assigns, a perpetual easement with the right to erect, construct, install, and lay and
thereafter access and use, operate, inspect, repair, maintain, replace, upgrade, parallel and remove water
distribution lines and appurtenances and any other facilities necessary to serve Grantors' property as well as
the Grantee's current and future system-wide customers, under, over and acrossacres of land,
more particularly described in instrument recorded in Vol, Page, Deed Records,
County, Texas, together with the right of ingress and egress over Grantor's adjacent lands
for the purpose for which the above mentioned rights are granted. The easement hereby granted shall not
exceed 15' in width, and Grantee is hereby authorized to designate the course of the easement herein conveyed
except that when the pipeline(s) is installed, the easement herein granted shall be limited to a strip of land 15'
in width the center line thereof being the pipeline as installed.

Grantee shall have such other rights and benefits necessary and/or convenient for the full enjoyment and use of the rights herein granted, including without limitation, (1) the reasonable right of ingress and egress over and across lands owned by Grantor which are contiguous to the easement; (2) the reasonable right from time to time to remove any and all paving, undergrowth and other obstructions that may injure Grantee's facilities and appurtenances or interfere with the construction, maintenance, inspection, operation, protection, repair, alteration, testing, replacement, upgrading, paralleling, relocation (as above limited), substitution or removal thereof; and (3) the right to abandon-in-place any and all water supply lines, service lines and associated appurtenances, such that Grantee shall have no obligation or liability to Grantor or their successors or assigns to move or remove any such abandoned lines or appurtenances.

In the event the easement hereby granted abuts on a public road and the county or state hereafter widens or relocates the public road so as to require the relocation of this water line as installed, Grantor further grants to Grantee an additional easement over and across the land described above for the purpose of laterally relocating said water line as may be necessary to clear the road improvements, which easement hereby granted shall be limited to a strip of land 15' in width the center line thereof being the pipeline as relocated.

The consideration recited herein shall constitute payment in full for all damages sustained by Grantors by reason of the installation of the structures referred to herein and the Grantee will maintain such easement in a state of good repair and efficiency so that no unreasonable damages will result from its use to Grantors' premises. This agreement together with other provisions of this grant shall constitute a covenant running with the land for the benefit of the Grantee, its successors, and assigns. The Grantors covenant that they are the owners of the above described land and that said lands are free and clear of all encumbrances and liens except the following:

Grantor does hereby bind itself, its successors and assigns, to WARRANT AND FOREVER DEFEND, all and singular, the easement herein granted to Grantee, or Grantee's successors and assigns, against every person whomsoever claiming, or to claim, the same or any part thereof.

Form RUS-TX 442-9 (Rev. 9-02)

The easement conveyed herein was obtained or improved through Federal financial assistance. This easement is subject to the provisions of the Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the regulations issued pursuant thereto for so long as the easement continues to be used for the same or similar purpose for which financial assistance was extended or for so long as the Grantee owns it, whichever is longer.

I	N WITNESS , 20	WHEREOF _·	the said	Grantors	have	executed	this	instrument	this		day	of
ACKNO	WLEDGEM	ENT										
STATE OF COUNTY	F TEXAS OF		·									
appeared_ is(are) subs	EFORE ME, the scribed to the ses and consider	foregoing inst	trument, a	nd acknov		known to	me to	be the per	son(s	s) whose	e nam	ie(s)
GI	VEN UNDER	MY HAND	AND SEA	AL OF OF	FICE T	THIS THE		day of	3		, 20_	•
(Seal)				-		(Notary	Publi	ic in and fo	r)	_Count	y, Tex	cas.

NON-STANDARD SERVICE CONTRACT

THE STATE OF TEXAS	
COUNTY OF	
THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into by and between	
hereinafter referred to as "Developer", and Edom Water Supply Corporation,	hereinafter referred to as
"EWSC" or "Corporation".	
WHEREAS, Developer is engaged in developing that certain	acres of land in
, County, Texas, more particularly known as the	
subdivision, according to the plat thereof recorded at Vol, Page	of the Plat Records of
County, Texas, said land being hereinafter referred to as "the	e Property"; and,
WHEREAS, EWSC owns and operates a water system which supplies	potable water for human
consumption and other domestic uses to customers within its service area; and,	
WHEREAS, Developer has requested EWSC to provide such water	service to the Property
through an extension of EWSC's water system, such extension being herein	nafter referred to as "the

Water System Extension"; NOW THEREFORE: KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

THAT for and in consideration for the mutual promises hereinafter expressed, and other good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by the parties, Developer and EWSC agree and contract as follows:

1. Engineering and Design of the Water System Extension.

- (a) The Water System Extension shall be engineered and designed by a Texas Licensed Professional Engineer in accordance with the applicable specifications of the EWSC and all governmental agencies having jurisdiction. All plans and specifications must be reviewed and approved by EWSC's consulting engineer prior to the issuance of any request for bids for the construction of the Water System Extension. After such approval of the plans and specifications by the EWSC's consulting engineer, the plans and specifications shall become part of this Agreement by reference and shall more particularly define "the Water System Extension".
- (b) The Water System Extension must be sized to provide continuous and adequate water service to the Property based on plans for the development of the provided to EWSC by the Developer. EWSC may require the Water System Extension to be oversized in anticipation of the needs of other customers of the EWSC, subject to the obligation to reimburse the Developer for any such oversizing as provided below.

2. Required Sites, Easements or Rights-of-Way.

- (a) Developer shall be responsible for dedicating or acquiring any easements across privately owned land or sites (including off-site) which are necessary for the construction or operation of the Water System Extension and for obtaining any Governmental approvals necessary to construct the Water System Extension in public right-of-way.
- (b) Any easements acquired by the Developer shall be in a form approved by the EWSC (see Form of Easement, attached to this Contract and made a part hereof) and shall be assigned to EWSC upon proper completion of the construction of the